
City Commission
Kingston Springs, Tennessee

12/21/2023

Meeting Packet
 



 



Start Table of Contents

City Commission
Meeting Packet

12/21/2023
1. The meeting was called to order by _______________________ at ______ p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

A. Board Members
Mayor Tony Gross
Vice Mayor Glenn Remick
Commissioner Mike Hargis
Commissioner Carolyn Clark
Commissioner Todd Verhoven

B. Town Staff
City Manager John Lawless
City Attorney Timothy Potter
Kellie Reed, Finance Director
Jamie Dupre', City Recorder
Eugene Ivey, Public Safety Director
Roger Parker, Public Works Director
Brandy Miniat, Parks Director

4. Declaration of Quorum by Mayor

5. Approval of Agenda

A. Approval of December 21, 2023 City Commission Meeting Agenda

6. Approval of Minutes

A. November 16, 2023 Public Hearing Meeting Minutes
B. November 16, 2023 City Commission Meeting Minutes

7. Announcements from Commissioners

8. Community Input

9. City Manager Updates and Department Reports

10. City Attorney Updates

11. Old Business

12. New Business

A. Secondary Meter Write-off from Second South Cheatham Utility District
B. Recognition of Chief Eugene Ivey: 30 years of service

13. Surplus Requests

14. Other (Discussion Only Items)

15. Reminders



 



A. City Hall will be closed Monday, December 25, 2023 and Tuesday, December 26, 2023 for the
Christmas Holiday

B. City Hall will be closed Monday, January 1, 2024 for the New Year Holiday
C. City Hall will be closed Monday, January 15, 2024 for the Martin Luther King, Jr. Holiday

16. Adjournment

End Table of Contents
 



 



 
 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners 
           November 16, 2023 Public Hearing Minutes 

 

1 
 

              
 

A. Call to Order: 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Gross at 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

B. Open Public Comments on the following: 

 

1. Ordinance 23-007 – Amending Title 15, Chapter 1 of the Kingston 

Springs Municipal Code – adopting by reference, state traffic offenses 

and rules of the road. 

 

 

2. Ordinance 23-008 – Amending the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget.  

No Public Comments on either Ordinance presented. 

 

C. Adjournment 

 

 

Mayor Gross adjourned the meeting at 7:01 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
________________________________                      _________________________________ 
Francis A. Gross, III              Jamie Dupre  
Mayor                City Recorder 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners 

Regular Business Meeting Minutes 

November 16, 2023 
 

 

1. Call to Order:   

Mayor Gross called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m. 

 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance: 

 

 

3. Roll Call: 

 

Board Members in Attendance: 

Carolyn Clark, Commissioner   Present 

Tony Gross, Mayor     Present 

Mike Hargis, Commissioner    Present 

Glenn Remick, Vice-Mayor     Present 

Todd Verhoven, Commissioner    Absent 

 

Staff in Attendance: 

John Lawless, City Manager    Present 

Jamie Dupré, City Recorder     Present 

Tim Potter, City Attorney       Present 

Kellie Reed, Finance Director    Present 

Eugene Ivey, Public Safety Director   Present 

            Brandy Miniat, Parks Director   Present 

            Roger Parker, Public Works Director    Present 

  

 

4. Declaration of Quorum by Mayor 

Mayor Gross declared a quorum. 

 

 

5. Motion to Approve the October 19, 2023, City Commission Meeting Minutes: 

Motion to approve October 19, 2023, City Commission Meeting minutes made by Vice-Mayor 

Remick, with a second by Commissioner Hargis. Motion passed.  

 

 

6. Motion to Approve the November 16, 2023, City Commission Meeting Agenda: 

Motion to approve the November 16, 2023, City Commission Meeting Agenda made by Vice-

Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner Hargis. Motion passed.  

 

 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, November 16, 2023                          2 

 

 

7. Announcements from Commissioners:  

Vice-Mayor Remick noted that World Atlas has declared Kingston Springs as one of the Top 

Ten Small Towns in the state for retirees.  

 

 

8. Community Input and Concerns:  

Mayor Gross asked City Attorney Potter for clarification on when people are allowed to make 

public comments. Mayor Gross said that Commissioner Clark requested that two people who 

are not on the agenda be allowed to make comments during the discussion items under 12.C. 

and 12.D. City Attorney Potter said that since these were on the agenda as discussion items, the 

mayor could rule at his discretion to allow community input during discussion. 

 

 

9. Department Reports: 

City Manager Lawless provided updates on several items: 

• Planning Commission Updates: 

o Ellersly – Stop Work Order has been lifted to allow exploratory digging to 

determine utility locations on plan set. 

o Golf Club of TN – off-season improvement plan approved. 

o Golf Club of DBI – withdrawal of plans for maintenance facility to be 

resubmitted in the future. 

o Tarver development – discussion on development proposal for 121 single-

family for rent homes at 119 Luyben Hills Road. No action taken. 

• The Town has applied for a TDOT Traffic Signal Modernization Program Grant that is 

a 100% grant for a project up to $125,000 for replacement or refurbishment of control 

cabinets and signal pads for traffic signal at intersection of Luyben Hills and East 

Kingston Springs Road. 

 

 

10. Legal Updates:  

None 

 

 

11. Unfinished Business: 

A. Discussion on status updates of the following items. Sponsored by Commissioner 

Clark: 

 

• Draining of wastewater lagoon /repair status. 

An insurance claim has been filed. Lagoon is being drained but we cannot exceed limits 

of our discharge permit, so it will take approximately 3 months to drain and be able to 

ascertain damage. 

 

• I-40 Exit 188 Mast Lights status. 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, November 16, 2023                          3 

 

 

Town has submitted a Community Transportation Planning Request (CTPR) to TDOT, 

which is the first formal step in requesting TDOT assistance in replacing or repairing 

the mast lights. In the short term, Travis Electric will be returning to see what measures 

they might be able to take to get them functioning. 

 

• Luyben Hills mid-block crosswalk. 

TDOT has not specifically said no, but they recommend not placing a crosswalk on a 

state highway. A crosswalk was in the original plans, and was removed at TDOT’s 

request during the design stage. 

 

• Speed Limit feedback radar signs. 

First feedback sign has been ordered at approximately $3,000. It will take 4-6 weeks. It 

will be installed on East Kingston Springs Road. Commissioner Clark asked if the next 

feedback sign would be installed on Mt. Pleasant Road, and the answer was yes. 

 

• Dates for 2024 Commissioners Retreat. 

Possible dates in February were discussed for Commissioners Retreat, but none 

worked, and a tentative date was set for March 9. 

 

B. Second Reading of Ordinance 23-007 – Amending Title 15, Chapter 1 of the Kingston 

Springs Municipal Code – adopting by reference state traffic offenses and rules of the 

road. 

Motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance 23-007 – Amending Title 15, Chapter 1 

of the Kingston Springs Municipal Code – adopting by reference state traffic offenses and 

rules of the road, made by Vice-Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner Clark. 

Roll call vote was held with Commissioner Clark voting yes, Mayor Gross voting yes, 

Commissioner Hargis voting yes, Vice-Mayor Remick voting yes, and Commissioner 

Verhoven absent. Motion passed. 

 

C. Second Reading of Ordinance 23-008 – Amending the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget. 

Finance Director Reed said the ordinance had been changed from first reading to change 

the amount of scholarship from the Tennessee Association of Police Chiefs to $340. We 

have also received the anonymous donation for the bullet proof vest for K9 Luca in the 

amount of $3,479 in memory of Officer Tucker Blakely with the Knox County Sheriff’s 

Office who died in the line of duty. Motion to approve Second Reading of Ordinance 23-

008 – Amending the 2023-2024 Fiscal Year Budget as amended made by Vice-Mayor 

Remick, with a second by Commissioner Hargis. Roll call vote was held with 

Commissioner Clark voting yes, Mayor Gross voting yes, Commissioner Hargis voting yes, 

Vice-Mayor Remick voting yes, and Commissioner Verhoven absent. Motion passed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, November 16, 2023                          4 

 

 

12. New Business: 

 

A. Motion to approve Resolution 23-014 – Supporting No Mow Month Initiative in 

Kingston Springs. Sponsored by Commissioner Clark. 

Commissioner Clark requested that since we know the No Mow Month will be in April, 

that the Resolution be amended to say No Mow April. Motion to approve Resolution 23-

014 – Supporting No Mow Month Initiative in Kingston Springs as amended made by 

Commissioner Clark, with a second by Mayor Gross. Motion passed. 

 

B. Motion to approve updated Professional Services Agreement for Planning Services. 

City Manager Lawless said the current planning services contract with Plans and More has 

not been updated since 2018. The agreement presented was initially vetted by former City 

Attorney Perry and currently by City Attorney Potter and all changes requested by legal 

have been made. The hourly rate is increased to $100; updated mileage to federal mileage 

rate; and the pass-through charges are more clearly defined. Commissioner Clark 

questioned whether or not Plans and More was allowed to do business in Tennessee since 

they are located in Kentucky. City Planner Armstrong said that Kentucky has a reciprocal 

agreement with Tennessee, and it has been vetted by City Attorney. Commissioner Clark 

objected to Plans and More, saying it was one company with too many hats: planning, 

inspections, permit approval. Armstrong stated that they did not do building inspections. 

That is done by the County inspector. She reviews building permits because there is no one 

else qualified at the moment to do it, and would still need to review for compliance for 

planning. Every permit requires a zoning compliance discussion. City Manager Lawless 

said that he and Pegram Mayor had interviews coming up for building inspector/permit 

position. Motion to approve updated Professional Services Agreement for Planning 

Services with Plans and More made by Vice-Mayor Remick, with a second by 

Commissioner Hargis. Motion passed three votes in favor, one against. Votes in favor of 

contract were Mayor Gross, Commissioner Hargis and Vice-Mayor Remick.  

Commissioner Clark voted against the contract. Commissioner Verhoven was absent.  

 

C. Discussion of proposal for consideration of sidewalk build on West Kingston Springs 

Road to connect Ellersly Subdivision to downtown Kingston Springs. Sponsored by 

Commissioner Clark.  

Commissioner Clark said the need for sidewalks on West Kingston Springs Road to 

connect Ellersly subdivision to downtown came to her attention two years ago at the 

Farmers Market when it was pointed out to her how unsafe it was walking on the side of 

the road. She noted that realtors advertise the subdivision as walking distance to 

downtown. She said that the late Mr. Yoho asked the Board of Commissioners for 

sidewalks in 2016. Mayor Gross said he remembered that. Mayor Gross attended a 

homeowners’ meeting at which Mr. Merville promised to provide funding for sidewalks. 

Commissioner Clark researched options and possible costs for sidewalks, as well as CSX 

requirements for use of their property. She also investigated grant possibilities. Several 

Ellersly residents spoke. They would like Mr. Merville to live up to his word, but if not, the 

town should step in and build sidewalk. Commissioner Hargis noted that we are currently 

paying off grants for sidewalks. Grant programs for current sidewalks were at 20/80 split 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, November 16, 2023                          5 

 

 

with 20% for town. This 20% keeps growing. He said he understands the concerns, but 

without a generous grant we can’t afford it right now. His concerns with grants are: Can we 

get the money? What’s our share? How confident are we in the bid? Commissioner Clark 

said there are lots of grants available and we should look into it. City Planner Armstrong 

said that anything concerning Ellersly must go before the Planning Commission due to the 

complication with their drainage and sewage issue. Lighting for sidewalks would also need 

to be considered. Armstrong said there is a safer shorter connection at the back of the 

development via the condos on Moores Lane. Mayor Gross said most grants do not make 

allowances for use of private property, which is the case with CSX. He said that going 

through the back of the development makes sense. Armstrong added that it is not yet 

developed, so there is an opportunity. Clark asked that both options be explored. City 

Manager Lawless said he will contact CSX about use of their property and explore possible 

grants. 

 

D. Discussion of Town’s definition of Principal structure/Use as contemplated and 

interpreted in Town Ordinances. Sponsored by Commissioner Clark. 

Commissioner Clark stated this discussion was just about the math related to the current 

definition of principal structures on parcels and she noted no reason for the City Planner to 

be a part of the discussion. Clark stated she felt the entire footprint should be counted 

toward the principal structure and not just the livable space. She said that garages weren’t 

currently counted toward livable space. This would increase livable space and allow for 

more accessory structures. Kelly Schwartz and Mike Roberts each spoke about expanding 

the area. Clark the referenced definitions for Ashland City and Cheatham County. Mayor 

Gross asked City Planner Armstrong to speak. Armstrong said the question is about what is 

defined in the current zoning. The principal use of a residential lot is residential, and the 

principal structure of residential is the living structure. If the amount allowed for accessory 

structures is greater than principal structure, then the residential structure is no longer the 

primary structure and doesn’t fit the zoning. She noted that there are also some currently 

subdivisions that limit accessory uses. She also noted that some lots are smaller and have 

coverage restrictions, and may have septic tanks and field lines in the rear of the house. It is 

illegal to build on top of the septic tank or field lines. If exceptions are made to zoning in 

one district, then it applies to all districts. She said the simplest way to addresses this is to 

increase the percent allowed for accessory structures. Currently it is at 50%, but you still 

have to take lot coverage allowance and setbacks into consideration. Attorney Potter asked 

why garages weren’t counted toward living space. Armstrong said attached, enclosed 

garages are counted. Open decks and carports are not counted toward livable space. 

Commissioner Clark said the definition should be changed. Armstrong said if someone has 

attached space that is not counted, it is probably listed incorrectly on the tax record. 

Armstrong said a change would need to go before the Planning Commission to see if there 

is a way to increase the percentage of accessory use. This is covered by the zoning 

ordinance. Mayor Gross said there was a way to move forward. Commissioner Hargis said 

those who have attached space not counted should check their tax record. Motion to 

recommend taking proposal to change percentage of accessory use to the Planning 

Commission made by Commissioner Hargis, with a second by Vice-Mayor Remick. 

Motion passed. 



 

 

Kingston Springs Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes, November 16, 2023                          6 

 

 

 

E. Motion to approve Resolution 23-015 – Approving United Community Bank as a 

depositor for municipal funds and authorizing City Manager to execute a contract for 

the same. 

Finance Director Reed said the Town accepted quotes from two banks to be depositor. The 

recommendation is to accept United Community Bank as depositor. They will give 5% rate 

on deposit and they have waived fees. Motion to approve Resolution 23-015 – Approving 

United Community Bank as a depositor for municipal funds and authorizing City Manager 

to execute a contract for the same made by Commissioner Hargis, with a second by Vice-

Mayor Remick. Motion passed. 

 

F. Approval of Second South Cheatham Utility District to refund secondary meters in 

the amount of $23,312.20. 

This is the refund for secondary meters. Commissioner Hargis said that he is on the list for 

refund and recused himself from voting. Motion to approve Second South Cheatham 

Utility District refund of secondary meters in the amount of $23,312.20 made by Mayor 

Gross, with a second by Vice-Mayor Remick. Motion passed. 

 

 

13. Surplus: 

None. 

 

 

14. Other (For Discussion Only): 

 

 

15. Reminders: 

• City Hall will be closed Thursday, November 23rd and Friday, November 24th for the 

Thanksgiving Holiday. 

• South Cheatham Public Library Tree Lighting on Thursday, November 30th at 7:00pm. 

• A Kingston Springs Christmas at Burns Park on Sunday, December 10th from 4:00pm to 

7:00pm. 

 

 

16. Adjourn the Meeting: 

Motion to adjourn meeting made by Vice-Mayor Remick, with a second by Commissioner 

Hargis. Motion passed, and meeting adjourned at 8:32 p.m. 

 

 
 
 

________________________________                   _______________________________ 
Francis A. Gross, III              Jamie Dupré 
Mayor                City Recorder 












































	Title Page
	Table of Contents
	Roll Call
	Approval of Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	November 16, 2023 Public Hearing Meeting Minutes
	November 16, 2023 City Commission Meeting Minutes

	City Manager Updates and Department Reports
	New Business
	Secondary Meter Write-off from Second South Cheatham Utility District

	Reminders

